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CITY OF CHICAGO - DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES 
 

APRIL 04, 2014 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

To 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (“RFQ”) 
 

FOR 
 

BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE EXPANSION 
 

SPECIFICATION NO: 122737 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For which Qualifications are scheduled to be received no later than 4:00 p.m., Central Time on 
April 18, 2014 (pursuant to the Request for Qualifications advertised February 10, 2014) in the 
Department of Procurement Services, Bid & Bond Room (Room 301 of City Hall). 
 

Respondent must acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 2 in the Cover Letter of its 
Qualifications AND should complete and return the attached Acknowledgment by 

facsimile to 312-744-9687. 
Attn:  Altha Riley, Senior Procurement Specialist 

 
 
This document contains: 
 

I. Notice of Revisions and Changes; 
II. Answers to 66 questions submitted for clarification of the RFQ  
III. Addendum Receipt Acknowledgment.  

 
The information contained in this Addendum No.2 is incorporated by reference into the original 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) issued on February 10, 2014. 
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CITY OF CHICAGO - DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES 
 

APRIL 04, 2014 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

To 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (“RFQ”) 
 

FOR 
 

BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE EXPANSION  
SPECIFICATION NO: 122737 

 

For which Qualifications are due in the Department of Procurement Services, Bid & Bond 
Room, Room 301, City Hall, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60602, at 4:00 p.m., 
Central Time, April 18, 2014. 
 

The following revisions/changes will be incorporated in the above-referenced RFQ 
document. All other provisions and requirements as originally set forth remain in full 
force and are binding.  
 

RESPONDENT SHOULD ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM IN THE COVER 
LETTER SUBMITTED WITH YOUR QUALIFICATIONS.  
 

SECTION I:  NOTICE OF REVISIONS AND CHANGES 
 

REVISION DESCRIPTION 
 
 

I. The previously advertised proposed Qualifications due date has been postponed.  
QUALIFICATIONS ARE NOW DUE NO LATER THAN 4:00 P.M. CENTRAL TIME ON 
APRIL 25 2014, IN THE BID & BOND ROOM (ROOM 301), CITY HALL, 121 NORTH 
LASALLE STREET, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60602. 
 

II. Section 4.2.1.2 of the RFQ has been deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 
 

Respondent or, if a joint Submittal, each Respondent, must submit a signed 

Confidentiality Statement, which is attached as Exhibit 2. 

III. Exhibit 8, City of Chicago Standard Contract Terms and Conditions, has been deleted in 
its entirety. 
 

IV. Section 4.2.1.1(v) of the RFQ has been deleted in its entirety. 
 

V. Section 5.7. of the RFQ has been deleted in its entirety. 
 

VI. The following attached exhibits have been added to the RFQ: 
 
Exhibit 9: ESRI ArcGIS Shapefiles 
Exhibit 10: Google Earth Keyhole Markup Language file 

 

 

CITY OF CHICAGO      JAMIE L RHEE 
DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES  CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER  
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SECTION II:  Answers to 66 Questions submitted for clarification of the RFQ 
 
Question 1: Globetrotters Engineering Corporation would like to request an ArcGIS file of 
the Innovation Zone map per page 26 of the RFQ for Broadband Infrastructure Expansion 
– Specification No. 122737. 
 

Answer:  Please refer to new Exhibit 9, ESRI ArcGIS Shapefiles, and Exhibit 10, Google 

Earth Keyhole Markup Language file. 
 
Question 2: Is there a bid bond needed for this RFP? 
 
Answer:   No. 
   
Question 3: What is the term of the contract or the completion date of this project? 
 
Answer:    This will be addressed during the RFP process. (Step 2) 
   
Question 4:   This RFQ is not for the consulting services, correct? Is that a separate 
project or will it be rolled into this one (does the city still require consulting services in 
conjunction with its broadband master plan)? 
 
Answer:    The City does not require consulting services as part of this initiative. 
 
Question 5:  Has the type of contract and/or contract term been determined yet?  
 
Answer:   See answer to Question 3. 
 
Question 6:  I do not believe there is a current contract for this, correct? 
 
Answer:   This is a new initiative.  The City currently has existing contracts for broadband 
service to its remote office locations. 
 
Question 7: What is the revenue commitment between the City of Chicago and Vendor in 
this contract document? 
 
Answer:   See answer to Question 3. 
 
Question 8: Will Indirect Participation be acceptable to the City of Chicago to meet the 
MBE/WBE requirements? 
 
Answer:   Refer to Exhibit 5, MBE/WBE Special Conditions and Schedules, Section 1.5, 
Regulations Governing Reductions to or Waiver of MBE/WBE Goals of the RFQ. 
 
Question 9: How is the Broadband Infrastructure Expansion project being funded by the 
City of Chicago? 
 
Answer:   It is being funded by leveraging a variety of City assets.  Additional details on these 
assets will be addressed during the RFP process. 
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Question 10: Will the City of Chicago waive Lease, or, Right of Way fees?  
 
Answer:  See answer to Question 3. 
 
Question 11: Does the city currently have a vendor providing these services or is this a 
new procurement? If so, can you tell me who the vendor is? 
 
Answer:   See answer to Question 6. 
 
Question 12: Do we need to be a City approved vendor to be chosen as a qualified 
respondent of the RFQ? If so, what is the process to become a qualified vendor? 
 
Answer:   There is no approved vendor list. 
 
Question 13: Can we answer the RFQ as a sole respondent and if chosen to respond to 
the RFP then choose to partner with another company on the response to the RFP? 
 
Answer:  The City needs to understand and evaluate the qualifications, experience and 
technical competence of the legal entity that submits a qualification to the RFQ, including 
subcontractors that makeup the proposed team the Respondent proposes to the City.  The legal 
entity that submits a proposal should not change for the RFP phase.  However, the City 
understands that additional partners (i.e. subcontractors, suppliers) may need to be added in 
the RFP response phase.   However, any change in a Respondent’s team in the RFP phase 
may be cause for the evaluation committee to revise its review and rating of the Respondent’s 
proposal.   
 
Question 14: Can you state that you will comply with the insurance requirements, for 
insurance exhibit? 
 
Answer: Yes. Refer to Section 4.2.10, Insurance of the RFQ. 
 
Question 15: How can we add a zone at this RFQ stage and have it considered as 
preferred? 
 
Answer: No zones that are added will be considered preferred. 
 
Question 16: In regards to MBE and WBE participation will the City give indirect 
participation the same scrutiny as a request for a waiver from MBE/WBE participation? 
 
Answer:  See answer to Question 8. 
 
Question 17: Because the Gigabit Squared City of Chicago/ State of Illinois broadband is 
no longer being promoted, what is the status for these communities? 
 
Answer: That project is not relevant to this initiative. 
 
Question 18: If JV or partnership with community partnering may not be formalized by 
submittal date, what documentation should be provided under 4.2.3.1. 
 
Answer:  The City expects adherence to Section 4.2.3.1, Company Profile Information of the 
RFQ.  
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Question 19: Since the purpose is to bring the cost of big bandwidth down, will the City 
set or regulate wholesale or retail prices on this network? 
 
Answer: Subject to modification by the RFP, the City will require that, during the term of the 
agreement to utilize City assets for this initiative, prices be set below a certain threshold for 
broadband services.    
 
Question 20: What is rough target start & completion dates for the project? 
 
Answer:  See answer to Question 3. 
 
Question 21: Any other agency assets included? 
 
Answer: Additional detail on leveraged assets will be provided during the RFP process. 
 
Question 22: Will City waive street restoration costs if construction is required? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 3. 
 
Question 23: How can I find out who took out the RFQ/RFP? 
 
Answer: The Bid & Bond Room Opportunity Take Out Sheet can be found at: 
 
https://webapps1.cityofchicago.org/VCSearchWeb/org/cityofchicago/vcsearch/controller/opportu

nityTOL/begin.do?agencyId=city 

A list of attendees from the Pre-Submittal Conference can be found at:  
 
http://www.cityofchicago.org/content/dam/city/depts/dps/PreBids/2014PreBids/PreBid122737.pdf
.  
 
Question 24: Will all 7 zones be awarded to one vendor or will there be a consideration 
for several vendors to have specific to certain zones? 
 
Answer: It is likely that one contract will be awarded to a single vendor.  Additional information 
will be provided during the RFP phase. 
 
Question 25: From October 2012 with Governor Quinn, CEO of Gigabit Squared, Rahm 
Emmanuel spoke of Southside Broadband Communities. What is the status of these 
communities that are cutout? 
 
Answer: That project is not relevant to this initiative. 
 
Question 26: If it is awarded to one entity, how are you going to ensure open access? 
 
Answer: Open access is not a requirement of the network. 
 
Question 27: If a business case can be made for this project, will the City provide any 
funding assistance to make this work? 
 

http://www.cityofchicago.org/content/dam/city/depts/dps/PreBids/2014PreBids/PreBid122737.pdf
http://www.cityofchicago.org/content/dam/city/depts/dps/PreBids/2014PreBids/PreBid122737.pdf
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Answer:  It is being funded by leveraging a variety of City assets, as outlined in the RFQ.  
Additional details on these assets will be addressed during the RFP process. 
 
Question 28: In the RFQ it states that Preferred Zones (all-3) must be bid with an alternate 
zone.  
 
Answer: The RFQ states that, at a minimum, one Preferred Zone must be bid on during the RFP 
process. 
 
Question 29: Can each zone be bid separately? Is this network open to all service 
providers? 
 
Answer: The RFQ states that, at a minimum, one Preferred Zone must be bid on during the RFP 
process.  If the winning bidder of the RFP has proposed an open access network, all service 
providers may be considered. 
 
Question 30: Is there speed data on “additional areas” from initial gigabit corridors in 
2012 RFI? 
 
Answer:  No. 
 
Question 31: What type of business intelligence system will be used for transparency 
and open access during design, construction and operation phases? 
 
Answer: Appropriate contract management tools will depend on the nature of the resulting 
contract. 
 
Question 32: How does this RFQ relate to the city’s consulting services for the 
development of a broadband master plan project that was listed as an upcoming 
procurement opportunity by the city for 2012-2013? 
 
Answer:  See answer to Question 4. 
 
Question 33: Is that project is part of Tech Plan which was released last year? 
 
Answer: Yes. 
 
Question 34: Can a Korean company participate in the project or only restricted to U.S 
companies? 
 
Answer: Yes. The City does not restrict eligibility to U.S. companies only.  
 
Question 35:  How will City link with monitoring system for world class internet 
infrastructure in relation to speed, quality and price levels? 
 
Answer: All reporting, including benchmark reporting, will be defined as part of the solution. 
 
Question 36: How will City and Contractor link with Community Institution network in 
Innovation Zone areas and areas and advanced manufacturing cluster areas in the City? 
 
Answer:  The contractor will not be required to link with existing community institution networks. 
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Question 37: Can the City provide the number of businesses with 50 or more employees 
that would be served by this network in the different zones? 
 
Answer:  The City does not currently have this information, but will look into whether or not this 
type of data can be provided. 
 
Question 38:  Is this an open bidding for foreign companies? (I.e. is Korea Telecom from 
the Republic of Korea eligible for this bidding)? 
 
Answer:  See answer to Question 34. 
 
Question 40: How far is it among 7 Innovation Zones? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 1. 
 
Question 41: When installing equipment in 7 different innovation zones, fiber optic 
cables along with PVC/ducts are offered free to respondent? 
 
Answer: Additional details on available assets will be provided during the RFP process. 
 
Question 42: How many cores do fiber optic cables (if offered) contain? At least 4 core 
fiber optic cables are needed. 
 
Answer:  See answer to Question 41. 
 
Question 43: Don’t we have to consider duplex configuration of PVC/ducts and 
dispersion route in this bidding? 
 
Answer: This will be addressed during the RFP process. (Step 2) 
 
Question 44: How large trunk capacity does it need among 7 innovation zones? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 45: What is the Average trunk capacity among 7 innovation zones? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 46: What is the Total number of GbE (Gigabit Ethernet) needed? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 47: Are there any restrictions or qualifications for equipment (i.e. equipment 
made in Korea is available for this bidding)? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
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Answer 48: Does City of Chicago provide rooms for ROADM equipment, routers, 
rectifiers, BAT, et cetera for free? It will occupy about two square meters each and is 
needed in every innovation zone. 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 49: Is Alternating current or power supply for rectifier offed free or provided at 
a cost? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 50: Does main control center which will be located in one of the 7 innovation 
zones need a billing server? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 51: Is the Room for main control center offered free or provided at a cost? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 50: Does respondent have to invest directly or is indirect investment   
allowed? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 52: Licenses and certifications should be submitted before March 28? 
License means FCC license? Currently KT America Inc. (an overseas branch of Korea 
Telecom in LA) owns ‘214’ license. Is it enough for licenses in RFQ? 
 
Answer:  Refer to Section 4.2.3.3, Licenses or Certifications, of the RFQ. 
 
Question 53: Do we have to submit a copy of a contract with a law firm or a lawyer? 
 
Answer:  This decision should be determined by the Respondent.   
 
Question 54: Regarding MBE and WBE, is it enough for submitting commitment letters 
from pertinent corporations before March 28? 
 
Answer: Refer to Section 4.2.6, Minority and Women Business Enterprises Commitment, of the 
RFQ. 
 
Question 55: Accurate monthly payment for network usage from 7 innovation zones can 
be checked after receiving RFP? 
 
Answer: Additional details on City broadband spend will be provided during the RFP process.  
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Question 56: The RFQ, Ref: No. 122737, does not mention a service address for where 
the 1 GB broadband circuit will be terminated.  I understand the different zones that will 
be connecting to the circuit for broadband access.  But can you provide me with the 
address for where the 1 GB circuit is to reside? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 57: What URL will be provided for zone identification and planning of scope of 
work? 
 
Answer: No relevant URL is applicable. 
  
Question 58: What website for technical requirements is available? 
 
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
 
Question 59: The RFQ states that the goal is to provide gigabit or near-gigabit service to 
businesses, universities and organizations in the identified core areas. Please confirm if 
the intent is to provide dedicated gigabit (or near-gigabit) speed available at each 
individual business or organization, and not shared gigabit speed among several 
business units. 
 
Answer: The intent is to provide dedicated gigabit or near-gigabit speed. 
 
Question 60: Are triple play services required or desired? 
 
Answer: Triple play services are not required. 
 
Question 61(a): Will the company awarded the RFQ/RFP be considered a registered 
communications company in the City of Chicago, and will they be subject to the same 
rules, taxation, and regulations that other communication providers operate under? 
 
Answer: Companies that solely provide broadband services are not required to register with the 
City of Chicago. 
 
Question 61(b): If not, will other communication providers offering high speed broadband 
services be granted the same rights and privileges in the targeted areas of the RFQ/RFP? 
 
Answer: Companies that solely provide broadband services are not required to register with the 
City of Chicago. 
 
Question 62: Please detail the various legal and regulatory restrictions contained in the 
federal grant dollars received for the OEMC and CTA fiber and restrictions contained in 
the bond commitments.  What, if any, are the restrictions that limit or prohibit use of the 
fiber to provide commercial communication services? 
   
Answer: See answer to Question 43. 
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Question 63: Will the city allow the vendor to use city buildings, street poles, and other 
city infrastructure to enable professionals and citizens to more productively use both an 
enhanced fixed gigabyte broadband network as well as an enhanced mobile network? 
 
Answer: Additional information on the assets will be addressed during the RFP process. 
 
Question 64: In order to accept the City’s Standard Contract Terms and Conditions, we 
need to understand what specific services we would be contracting for, including the 
revenue commitment. Specifically, what is the contract between the City and the qualified 
respondent going to include? What is specifically being contracted? 
 
Answer:   See Revision VI of this Addendum 2. 
 
Question 65: Can the due date be extended to ensure the most comprehensive 
response? 
 
Answer: Yes, the due date has been extended to April 25, 2014 4:00 p.m. Central Time. 
 
Question 66: Are respondents to the RFQ required to respond to the RFP (Step 2) if 
invited to do so? 
 
Answer: No.  Respondents selected to proceed to the RFP phase will have the option of 
responding, but will not be required to do so. 
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CITY OF CHICAGO - DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES 
 

APRIL 04, 2014 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 

To 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (“RFQ”) 
 

FOR 
 
 

BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE EXPANSION  
 

SPECIFICATION NO: 122737 
 
 
Consisting of Sections I – III including this Acknowledgment. 
 
 

III. ADDENDUM RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
I hereby acknowledge receipt of Addendum No.2 to the RFQ named above and further 
state that I am authorized to execute this Acknowledgment on behalf of the company 
listed below. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Individual   Title 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________ 
Name of Authorized Individual (Type or Print) Company Name 
 
        _______________________ 
       Business Telephone Number   
 
 
 

Complete and Return this Acknowledgment by facsimile to: 
312-744-9687, Attn: Altha Riley, Senior Procurement Specialist 

 
 


